
  
 

 
DOWNTOWN HAYWARD BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA 

ADVISORY BOARD 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

April 6, 2016 
Conference Room 2A  

8:00 A.M. 
 

CALL TO ORDER  
 
ROLL CALL  
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: (The Public Comment section provides an opportunity to address the City Council Committee on 
items not listed on the agenda as well as items on the agenda.  The Committee welcomes your comments and requests that 
speakers present their remarks in a respectful manner, within established time limits, and focus on issues which directly 
affect the City or are within the jurisdiction of the City.  As the Committee is prohibited by State law from discussing items 
not listed on the agenda, any comments on items not on the agenda will be taken under consideration without Committee 
discussion and may be referred to staff.)  
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

1. Approval of Minutes of Special Meeting held January 15, 2016 
 

2. Update of Downtown Police Activities (Oral Report Only) 
 
3. Finalization of FY2016-2017 DBIA Budget Allocations 
 
 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBER/STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS AND REFERRALS 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING – 8:00 a.m., Wednesday, July 6, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
***Materials related to an item on the agenda submitted to the Council Committee after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office, City Hall, 777 B Street, 4th 
Floor, Hayward, during normal business hours. An online version of this agenda and staff reports are 
available on the City’s website.   
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in compliance with the Americans 

Disabilities Act of 1990.  Interested persons must request the accommodation at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting 
by contacting the Assistant City Manager at (510) 583-4300 or TDD (510) 247-3340. 

 
CITY HALL, 777 B STREET, HAYWARD, CA 94541 

http://www.hayward-ca.gov 

April 4, 2016 

 

2 



MINUTES 
DOWNTOWN HAYWARD BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA 

ADVISORY BOARD 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
January 15, 2016 

 
ATTENDANCE: 
 

BIA Member Present Absent 
Alfredo Rodriguez Jr.* X  
Joseph Davis X  
Sid Hamadeh  X 
Syed Karim X  
Rui Li X  
Benjamin Schweng X  

          *Chair 
 
 
VISITORS: Kim Huggett, Hayward Chamber of Commerce 
 
STAFF: Micah Hinkle, Economic Development Manager; Ramona Thomas, Economic 

Development Specialist; Suzanne Philis, Senior Secretary 
             
 
I. Call to Order 

Chair Rodriguez called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m.  
 
II. Roll Call 

Member Hamadeh was absent. 
 
III. Public Comments 

Kim Huggett, President of the Hayward Chamber of Commerce, said he was excited about 
the different activities taking place in the downtown. He announced the Feb. 8th ground-
breaking for the Meta Housing senior housing project on A Street. 
 
Chair Rodriguez commented that the direction of either B or C Street (both one-way going 
west) should be changed to improve traffic in the downtown. Economic Development 
Specialist Thomas explained that Public Works was looking at traffic flow as part of the 
Downtown Specific Plan update. Staff did not know the timeline for the completion of the 
update. 
 

IV. Approval of Minutes of Special Meeting held November 6, 2015 
Member Li made the motion to approve the minutes with the requested changed from Anna 
May, Member Schweng seconded. Minutes were approved with Member Davis abstaining 
and Members Hamadeh and Karim absent. (Karim arrived after the vote.) 
 
 
 



V. DBIA Mid-Year Budget Review 
Economic Development Specialist Thomas gave the report noting no merchants had 
participated in the Holiday Decoration Reimbursement Program to-date so that allocation, 
or any remaining funds, would be rolled back into the DBIA general budget. 
 
Chair Rodriguez asked if there was a back-up plan if the Community Benefit District 
(CBD) did not receive the required percentage approval from property owners. Staff said 
that the City would have to reevaluate its options if the District formation failed. 
 
Member Li asked if the April 2016 DBIA meeting was the last one. Staff explained that the 
DBIA would continue to meet through the next fiscal year or June of 2017. 
 
Member Schweng commented that the City’s decision to stop collecting DBIA fees was 
premature and had created a gap in funding between the dissolution of the DBIA and the 
start of the CBD. Specialist Thomas said the DBIA fees could be reinstated if need be. 
 
Member Schweng explained that he was concerned the CBD members or CBD structure 
may not want to support established downtown events and he wanted those events to 
continue. 

 
VI. Hayward Chamber of Commerce Request for Funding – Annual Special Events 

Hayward Chamber of Commerce President Huggett explained that no additional funds were 
being requested; the amount being requested was the same as last year and approval would 
include the expansion of the Light Up the Season holiday event to an all-day event on 
Saturday. Approval at this time, he said, would allow the Chamber to begin promotion of all 
events. 
 
Chair Rodriguez, also representing the United Merchants Association, said business owners 
preferred a Saturday holiday event so they could get more involved. He then requested 
more information about the 2015 Bike Rodeo noting he didn’t know what was happening in 
each area and that the event needed more promotion. 
 
Mr. Huggett explained that a delay with the encroachment permit also delayed promotion. 
He gave a breakdown of each area and noted adjustments would be made to activities that 
didn’t attract participation. He also pointed out that 2015 was the first time the event was 
offered. 
 
Chair Rodriguez recommended the event start later in the morning. Mr. Huggett suggested 
10:00a.m. to 3:00p.m. Member Schweng suggested Noon to 4:00 p.m. 
 
Chair Rodriguez wanted more merchant and community involvement. Mr. Huggett said all 
were welcome to participate in planning and with more planning time the event would be 
better. 
 
Going event by event, Chair Rodriguez made a motion to approve $24,000 in funding for 
the Summer Street Party series (July 21, 2016; August 18, 2016; and June 15, 2017), 
Member Li seconded, and the motion was approved with Member Hamadeh absent. 
 

Downtown Hayward Business Improvement Area Advisory Board Summary Notes 
January 15, 2016 
Page 2 
 



Member Davis made a motion to approve $7,500 in funding for the 2016 Bicycle Rodeo, 
Member Karim seconded, and the motion was approved with Member Hamadeh absent. 
 
Chair Rodriguez made a motion to approve $500 in funding for the 2016 Mariachi Festival, 
Member Davis seconded, and the motion was approved with Member Hamadeh absent. 
 
Member Davis made a motion to approve $1,500 in funding for the 2016 Light Up the 
Season all-day Saturday holiday event, Chair Rodriguez seconded, and the motion was 
approved with Member Hamadeh absent. 
 

VII. 2016 Vintage Alley Car Show Funding Request 
Chair Rodriguez, also the organizer of the event, gave a brief presentation and was advised 
by staff not to participate in the vote. 
 
Member Karim asked if car owners in the show had to pay to participate and if yes, why did 
he need DBIA funding. Chair Rodriguez explained that cost for the event was still higher 
than revenues. Member Karim asked how the event could become self-funded. Chair 
Rodriguez said that probably wasn’t possible especially since he was still growing the 
event, now only in its third year. 
 
Member Li said the Car Show was a good event that attracted families and visitors from 
other cities. She said she would support funding. 
 
Member Schweng agreed it was a good event but he reiterated concerns expressed at a 
previous meeting that Mr. Rodriguez needed to create an event structure or non-profit so 
funding wouldn’t be going toward a private event. He requested a non-profit structure 
moving forward and profit/loss statement for the event. 
 
Chair Rodriguez noted that he doesn’t make a penny on the event, that any profits were 
distributed between three charities, but was willing to create a non-profit organization as 
requested. 
 
Member Karim pointed out that if Mr. Rodriguez could donate to charities he was making 
money on the event and Mr. Rodriguez said it was only a couple hundred dollars all 
together. Member Karim said he would also like to see a profit/loss statement. Chair 
Rodriguez provided copies of the event budget. 
 
Economic Development Manager Hinkle commented that it was a good event with good 
draw and that his department could fund the event if necessary. He agreed there was a 
conflict because Chair Rodriguez was a member of the Advisory Board, but noted there was 
conflict with most downtown events. 
 
Member Li said she was fine with funding a private event if it could potentially benefit 
downtown merchants. 
 
Member Davis asked Member Schweng if he wanted the layout of the event to be changed 
and Member Schweng said no; the layout and how the event was run was acceptable, he 
just wanted the organizer to be a non-profit. 

Downtown Hayward Business Improvement Area Advisory Board Summary Notes 
January 15, 2016 
Page 3 
 



 
Member Davis made a motion to approve $6,000 in event funding for the 2016 Vintage 
Alley Car Show. Member Li seconded the motion and the motion was approved with Chair 
Rodriguez abstaining and Member Hamadeh absent. 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBER/STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS AND REFERRALS 
 
Chair Rodriguez commented that downtown street trees were so messy and he wondered if 
the DBIA “Beautification” funding could be used to replace them and add lighting. 
Economic Development Manager Hinkle said he would notify the group of any community 
meetings for the Downtown Specific Plan update. 
 
Chair Rodriguez also commented that more signage was needed for upcoming events. 
Specialist Thomas said funds could be used for an event banner and Chair Rodriguez 
pointed out there wasn’t anywhere to hang a banner. 
 
Member Li suggested directories and posters like the one in the Cinema Place parking 
garage or similar to a mall directory. Specialist Thomas said the map needed to be updated. 
 
Member Karim suggested a banner across Foothill Boulevard, A, or B Street. Economic 
Development Manager Hinkle explained that staff had already explored hanging banners 
from the green traffic signal archways around downtown but found that wasn’t allowed. 
 
Member Schweng said he had two areas of concern:  graffiti on sidewalks and the homeless 
breaking into trash cans. Members discussed these concerns and Chair Rodriguez 
recommended having the phone number for downtown bicycle officers handy at all times. 
 

VIII. Adjournment   
The meeting was adjourned at 9:00 a.m. 
 

STAFF ACTION ITEMS 

Econ Dev 
Notify DBIA Board of any upcoming Downtown Specific Plan Update community 
meetings. 

Econ Dev 
Attendance counts for recurring events and financial information including costs 
versus revenues and/or event guidelines 

 

Downtown Hayward Business Improvement Area Advisory Board Summary Notes 
January 15, 2016 
Page 4 
 



 

 3  

 
 

 

DATE: April 6, 2016 

 

TO: Downtown Business Improvement Area Advisory Board 

 

FROM: Micah Hinkle, Economic Development Manager 

 

SUBJECT: Finalization of FY2016-2017 DBIA Budget 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends that the Downtown Business Improvement Area Advisory Board (DBIA) make 

final funding recommendations to the City Council for incorporation into the City’s FY 2017 

Budget. 

 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 

 

On June 16, 2015, City Council voted to suspend collection of district assessment fees for 2016 in 

order to spend down the reserve account for the DBIA.  The overall funding has been in decline 

since the elimination of the Redevelopment Agency and the correlated activity the DBIA has 

sponsored over the past two years has primarily focused on targeted special events within the 

downtown.     

 

At a Special DBIA Meeting held January 15, 2016, the DBIA Advisory Board reviewed funding 

requests for the upcoming year.  Five special events were discussed and were recommended for 

approval for a total cost of $39,500 (see discussion in Draft Minutes attached for approval).  The 

DBIA felt that the limited funds were best used for Special Events that drive business activity to the 

downtown DBIA district.  No other funding recommendations were made.  

 

NEXT STEPS 

 

The DBIA Advisory Board needs to final recommendations for the FY17 Budget (Attachment I), 

that will be presented to the City Council for review and approval.   

 

Based on DBIA Board direction, staff will a prepare budget report for Council approval in June. 

 

Prepared by: Suzanne Philis, Senior Secretary 

 

Recommended by: Micah Hinkle, Economic Development Manager 



Finalization of FY2016-2017 DBIA Budget    2 of 2 
April 6, 2016   

Approved by: 

 

 

 
 
Fran David, City Manager 
 

 

Attachments: 

 

 

 

Attachment I FY2017 DBIA Budget 



DBIA Proposed Budget and Actuals To Date (FY2017)
Fund 280
Source: Munis Account Inquiry
As of 3/22/2016

A B

1
2 Adopted Budget Actual To Date
3
4 Beginning Fund Balance 62,041$ 62,041$               
5
6 Revenue
7 DBIA Assessment ‐$   ‐$
8
9 Subtotal Revenue ‐$   ‐$
10 Transfers In
11 Total Revenue ‐$   ‐$
12
13 Expense
14 Events
15 Street Parties (Third Thursday) 24,000$ ‐$
16 2016 Annual Vintage Alley Car Show 6,000$ ‐$
17 2016 Mariachi Festival 500$   ‐$
18 2016 Light Up The Season 1,500$ ‐$
19 2017 Bicycle Rodeo 7,500$ ‐$
20 ‐$   ‐$
21 ‐$   ‐$
22 ‐$   ‐$
23
24 Events Subtotal 39,500$ ‐$
25
26 Area Beautification
27 Sidewalk Cleaning Entire BIA Biannually ‐$   ‐$
28 Deep Cleaning/Gum Removal ‐$   ‐$
29
30 Beautification Subtotal ‐$   ‐$
31
32 Total Expenses 39,500$ ‐$
33
34 Change in Fund Balance (39,500)$ ‐$
35
36 Ending Fund Balance 22,541$ 62,041$               
37
38
39
40 Prepared by John Stefanski, Administrative Analyst

July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017
Fiscal Year 2016

Attachment I


	Agenda
	Draft Minutes from Special Meeting held January 15, 2016
	Finalization of FY2016-2017 DBIA Budget
	Attachment I



